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METROPOLITAN COUNCIL 
390 North Robert Street, St. Paul, MN  55101 

Phone (651) 602-1000  TDD (651) 291-0904 
 
DATE:  April 22, 2008  
 
TO:  Metropolitan Parks and Open Space Commission 
 
FROM: Arne Stefferud, Planning Analyst-Parks (651) 602-1360 
 
SUBJECT: (2008-84) Request for reimbursement consideration authorization for 

construction of Dakota Rail Regional Trail, Three Rivers Park District 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
On March 8, 2006 the Metropolitan Council took the following action regarding the Dakota Rail 
Regional Trail master plan: 
 

1. That the Metropolitan Council approve the Dakota Rail Regional Trail master plan 
(Referral No. 19605-2). 

 
2. That Three Rivers Park District submit construction plans detailing the exact location of 

the trail and any other pertinent information to Metropolitan Council Environmental 
Services (MCES) to ensure that the proposed construction will not interfere with the 
operation of any MCES sewer interceptors.   

 
In compliance with recommendation 2, the Park District has submitted construction plans for the 
trail’s development to Metropolitan Council Environmental Services (MCES) to ensure that the 
proposed construction will not interfere with the operation of any MCES sewer interceptors.  The 
Park District has also asked that the Metropolitan Council consider reimbursing $2,415,000 in 
future regional parks capital improvement programs for construction of the trail other than bridge 
modifications.  (See Attachment 1, letter from Boe Carlson, Three Rivers Park District, and 
Attachment 2: Dakota Rail Regional Trail development costs, which is the basis for the 
$2,415,000 reimbursement consideration request). 
 
This memorandum contains a review of the request for reimbursement consideration under 
applicable terms in Strategy 2(f) of the 2030 Regional Parks Policy Plan.  
 
AUTHORITY TO REVIEW 
  
Minnesota Statute Section 473.315 authorizes the “Metropolitan Council with the advice of the 
Metropolitan Parks and Open Space Commission to make grants from any funds available to it 
for recreation open space purposes to any municipality, park district or county located wholly or 
partially within the metropolitan area to cover the cost, or any portion of the cost, of acquiring or 
developing regional recreation open space in accordance with the [Regional Recreation Open 
Space] Policy Plan”. 
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BACKGROUND 
 
The Dakota Rail corridor is 44 miles in length and runs from Wayzata west around the northern 
bays of Lake Minnetonka, past Lake Waconia in Carver County and terminates at Hutchinson in 
McLeod County.  In 2001, the Hennepin County Regional Railroad Authority (HCRRA) acquired 
the Hennepin County portion of the Dakota Rail Corridor.  Carver and McLeod County Regional 
Rail Authorities acquired their respective portions as well.  The intent of the purchase is to 
preserve the corridor for future transit operations.   
 
Given the lengthy time frame for transit development, and the success of using other HCRRA 
rights of way for trail purposes as interim uses, Three Rivers Park District initiated discussions 
with the HCRRA to lease a portion of the Dakota Rail Corridor in order to develop a regional trail 
on it.  
 
On March 8, 2006 the Metropolitan Council approved the development master plan for the 
Hennepin County portion of the trail. (Referral No. 19605-2).  The Park District then began to do 
design work on the trail’s development. On January 17, 2007 the Metropolitan Council approved 
a request to consider reimbursing Three Rivers Park District up to $648,644 for final design 
development and construction plans for the Dakota Rail Regional Trail in a future regional parks 
capital improvement program.  In both Council actions, the Council asked the Park District to 
submit construction plans detailing the exact location of the trail and any other pertinent 
information to Metropolitan Council Environmental Services (MCES) to ensure that the proposed 
construction will not interfere with the operation of any MCES sewer interceptors. 
 
It should be noted that the Carver County portion of the Dakota Rail Regional Trail has also been 
master planned. The Metropolitan Council approved that master plan on August 8, 2007 (Referral 
No. 20027-1). 
 
REIMBURSEMENT REQUEST ANALYSIS 

 
Strategy 2(f) of the 2030 Regional Parks Policy Plan states:    

 
Strategy 2(f): Reimbursement 

Reimbursement will be considered for development provided the project in 
question is consistent in timing, scale, type and cost with an approved master 
plan, that all information required for a development grant is submitted to the 
Council prior to the regional park implementing agency undertaking the project 
and that the Council approves the project.  

This project is consistent with the terms of Strategy 2(f) for the following reasons: 

1. The timing, scale and cost of this project are consistent with the Council-approved 
development master plan under the following factors: 

 

a. The bid price for the trail’s construction including modifications to bridges is 
$3,864,000 as shown in Attachment 2.  This is consistent with the estimated 
costs for constructing the trail in the 2006 Development Master Plan, which was 
$3,848,000 in 2006 dollars. Please note that the bridge modification cost of 
$1,449,617 is not requested for reimbursement consideration.  

b. The timing and scale of the development as described is consistent with the 2006 
Development Master Plan.  
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2. Enough information has been submitted in this request regarding what would be 
financed with a Council grant to meet the requirements of Strategy 2(f). In this case, that 
information is contained in Attachments 1 and 2.    

3. The Park District is requesting Metropolitan Council approval for this construction 
project prior to undertaking it.  The Park District has also submitted its construction 
plans to Metropolitan Council Environmental Services (MCES) for its review, which is 
consistent with the Council’s request for that information. The MCES comments are 
shown in Attachment 3.   

 

CONCLUSIONS 
 

1. The 2030 Regional Parks Policy Plan requires that requests for CIP reimbursement 
consideration are consistent with the terms of Strategy 2(f).  This review concludes that 
the reimbursement consideration request of $2,415,000 for construction of the Hennepin 
County portion of the Dakota Rail Regional Trail as shown in Attachment 2 is consistent 
with the terms of Strategy 2(f).  The timing of when the Park District is reimbursed for 
any portion of the $2,415,000 is dependent on when funds are provided in future regional 
parks capital improvement programs.   However, the Council does not under any 
circumstances represent or guarantee that a reimbursement will be granted, and 
expenditure of local funds never entitles a park agency to reimbursement. 

2. Comments from the Council’s Environmental Services Division (MCES) shown in 
Attachment 3 should be forwarded to Three Rivers Park District so that the trail’s 
construction does not interfere with the operation of any MCES sewer interceptors.  

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That the Metropolitan Council: 
 

1. Consider reimbursing Three Rivers Park District up to $2,415,000 for construction at 
Silverwood Special Recreation Feature as shown in Attachment 2 in future regional 
parks capital improvement programs. However, the Council does not under any 
circumstances represent or guarantee that reimbursement will be granted, and expenditure 
of local funds never entitles a park agency to reimbursement. 

 
2. Submit comments from the Metropolitan Council’s Environmental Services Division 

shown in Attachment 3 to insure that the trail’s construction does not interfere with the 
operation of any MCES sewer interceptors. 
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Attachment 1:  Letter from Boe Carlson, Three Rivers Park District 
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Attachment 2:  Cost Details for Dakota Rail Regional Trail Development  
 

 
Requested reimbursement consideration in future Metro Council regional parks 
capital improvement programs is shown below: 
 

Grading and removals $       787,537.05 

Paving $    1,216,831.50  

Drainage $          58,490.05 

Signing & Striping $          74,619.00 

Landscape, Turf, Site Misc. $        281,092.50 

Total request for reimbursement 
consideration in future Metro Council 
regional parks CIPs 

$     2,415,000   
(rounded to nearest thousand) 
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Attachment 3:  Metro Council Environmental Services Division review of Dakota 
Rail Regional Trail construction plans prepared by Three Rivers Park District  
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